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DECISION

The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) has cause to revoke the property carrier registration of Caryl Ray Pearson because he refused to allow a compliance review of his registered property carrier operations.  
Procedure

On October 6, 2008, the MHTC filed a complaint to establish cause to discipline Pearson as a registered property carrier.  On November 4, 2008, we served Pearson by certified mail with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing and a copy of the complaint.  Pearson did not respond.  On January 26, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination.  We gave Pearson until February 9, 2009, to respond, but he did not.  

We may decide this case without a hearing if a party establishes facts that entitle that party to a favorable decision and no party raises a genuine issue as to such facts.
  The facts may be established by affidavit or other evidence admissible under the law.
  We find that the MHTC established the following undisputed facts by clear and satisfactory evidence.
Findings of Fact

1.
Pearson is an individual person who, at the time of the events described herein, engaged in the business of a motor carrier as a sole proprietorship.  Pearson’s principal place of business and trucking terminal are located at his place of residence within Greene County, Missouri, at 408 N. Farm Road 45, Bois D’Arc, MO, 65612. 
2.
Pearson filed an application to operate in intrastate commerce with the Missouri Department of Transportation (“MoDOT”) Motor Carrier Services Division, seeking MoDOT’s issuance of a property carrier registration.  On March 28-29, 2007, in response to Pearson’s application, Transportation Enforcement Investigator Lance Hagler performed a safety audit
 and corporate security review at Pearson’s terminal. 
3.
MoDOT thereafter approved Pearson’s application and issued a property carrier registration effective June 4, 2007, which authorized Pearson to engage in the business of 
transporting property (except household goods) by motor vehicle upon the public highways in intrastate commerce, as a “registered property carrier.”
 
4.
As a routine follow-up to the issuance of the property carrier registration to Pearson, MoDOT assigned Transportation Enforcement Investigator Kelly Roth to conduct a “compliance review”
 in Pearson’s terminal.  Before visiting Pearson’s premises to conduct the compliance review, Investigator Roth mailed a letter to Pearson at his principal place of business, notifying Pearson that he would visit Pearson’s terminal on June 12, 2007, to begin the compliance review.

5.
Roth’s letter scheduling the compliance review also instructed Pearson to gather specific documents and records relating to his commercial motor vehicle operations before the scheduled date of the compliance review for the investigator to inspect during the review. 

6.
On June 12, 2007, Roth appeared at the scheduled time to conduct the compliance review at Pearson’s terminal.  Upon arrival there, Roth immediately identified himself to Pearson by displaying his MoDOT identification card and badge.  Roth explained to Pearson that he was 
following up on the earlier safety audit that had been conducted by MoDOT Investigator Lance Hagler, and that he was there to perform the scheduled compliance review of Pearson’s motor carrier operations.  In response, Pearson initially allowed Roth to enter his home, where Roth set up his laptop computer to conduct the compliance review.

7.
While both Pearson and Roth were seated in Pearson’s living room, Roth asked Pearson whether he had obtained the required medical examiner’s certificate or “medical card,” which certifies that a person is physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle in conformity with the federal motor carrier safety regulations.  Pearson’s initial answer was wholly irrelevant and unresponsive to Roth’s question, in that Pearson immediately began talking about his wife, saying that she was “a dancer at Sassy Red’s” – a nightclub in Springfield, Missouri.

8.
Roth then reiterated the purpose of his visit and restated his question, asking Pearson whether he possessed a valid medical card.  Pearson eventually replied that he had obtained a medical card, but then suddenly he began acting in an unreasonably suspicious and highly agitated manner toward Roth.

9.
Pearson was frequently unresponsive to Roth’s direct questions about his motor carrier activities.  Throughout Roth’s visit, Pearson often failed to answer Roth’s direct questions with relevant information.  Instead, Pearson repeatedly volunteered irrelevant, irrational, and intimidating comments, which included the following statements by Pearson to Roth:

a.
“Weird shit” has been going on around Pearson’s house.

b.
Pearson was involved with people that had something to do with the disappearance of three missing women.

c.
Pearson thinks his wife is working as a prostitute out of Sassy Red’s, and her pimp’s name is Terry McFarlan.
d.
Microphones have been hidden in Pearson’s house, and he almost caught “them” trying to remove the “devices.”  But Pearson never identified any specific persons he suspected of doing this and was unable to tell Roth who was “after him.”
e.
An hour before Roth’s arrival at Pearson’s house, Pearson received a threatening telephone call from someone in Kansas, whom Pearson never identified.  Then, just before Roth arrived at Pearson’s house, a large metal column that was on Pearson’s back porch fell over for no apparent reason. After Pearson said this, he suddenly jumped forward on his couch toward Roth and asked him if he thought that was strange.

f.
Pearson then asked Roth if he had any credentials.  For the second time since arriving at Pearson’s house that day, Roth displayed his official MoDOT identification card and badge to Pearson, who took these credentials from Roth to examine.

10.
After Pearson took Roth’s credentials as described above, Pearson stated that he would “take care of anyone who messed with” him.  At this point, Pearson purposely lifted a newspaper located on the couch to the right of Pearson, which revealed to Roth that a stainless steel, semi-automatic handgun was on the seat cushion next to Pearson.  Pearson did not pick up the weapon, but he purposely patted the top of the firearm with his hand in a threatening manner.

11.
After Pearson’s menacing display of the handgun, Roth asked Pearson to calm down.  Pearson raised his voice and angrily asked Roth, “How am I supposed to calm down, when you fucking people won’t listen to me!”  Pearson also stated, “I still do not know who the fuck you are,” even though Roth had twice identified himself and displayed his official MoDOT credentials to Pearson.  Roth told Pearson that he could call the Springfield Police Department 
and ask for Detective Allen Neal to verify that Roth was who he said he was.  Further attempting to calm Pearson down, Roth said that he has several friends that would be willing to listen to him.  Roth informed Pearson that he used to be a Springfield police officer, and that he could give him the name of someone that could talk to him to confirm Roth’s identity. 
12.
Pearson then telephoned the Springfield Police Department and spoke with Richard Counts and with Detective Allen Neal, each of whom confirmed Roth’s identity to Pearson.

13.
After Pearson concluded this telephone call, Roth continued speaking to Pearson in an attempt to calm him down. During the dialogue that followed, Pearson frequently seemed confused and unable to remain on the same subject for more than approximately one minute. Pearson also continually stopped to rub his head with his hand.  Pearson continued to volunteer irrelevant and seemingly irrational information to Roth.  For example, Pearson stated to Roth that:

a.
Pearson’s wife, Gigi, was involved with a church where her father was the pastor in Shell Knob, Missouri.  This church was involved with a “strip club,” possibly named “Curves,” and that the girls for the club were being provided by the church.  Pearson thought this church was involved with the “Posse Comitatus,” and was involved in mind control.

b.
Pearson’s wife is a “meth” addict and is possibly involved in the sale and distribution of “meth” out of Sassy Red’s.
c.
There was a “hooker” in Pearson’s house, whom Pearson did not identify. Several times during his conversation with Roth, Pearson pointed toward a wall and talked about a hooker.  Twice Roth asked where this hooker was, and each time Pearson replied that she was “in town.”
14.
After Pearson had made the statements described above, Roth told Pearson that he needed to stand up, and then did so.  When Roth stood up, Pearson slid to his right toward the handgun on the seat cushion next to him.  Roth then continued talking with Pearson, assuring him that he was taking him seriously and that he would pass his information on.  At that point, Roth received a call on his cell phone from his supervisor, which Roth used as an excuse, telling Pearson that he needed to go to his car to take the call.  Pearson then allowed Roth to leave the house.

15.
As Roth was preparing to leave Pearson’s house, he asked Pearson to come outside to get Pearson away from the handgun.  But Pearson stated to Roth that he could not leave “because the hooker was in the bedroom.”  Roth then asked Pearson if there was someone in the bedroom, and Pearson replied that “a hooker was in there.”  However, Roth never saw or heard any other person in Pearson’s house during the entire visit.

16.
When Roth got to his car outside Pearson’s house, he drove away.  After that, Roth telephoned Pearson, saying that he had to leave due to an emergency and that he would get back in touch with Pearson at a later date.  Roth promptly reported the incident with Pearson to his supervisor and to the Greene County Sheriff’s Department.
17.
Effective July 17, 2007, MoDOT suspended Pearson’s motor carrier’s intrastate operating authority for the reasons set out in its order:

[Roth’s] factual description of Pearson’s erratic and threatening behavior and irrational and unjustified words, show that Pearson acted on June 12, 2007, in an unpredictably hostile, aggressive and irrational manner, without provocation by Roth, and with a blatant disregard for lawful authority.  This provides MoDOT with good cause to believe that, if Pearson were allowed to continue operating as a motor carrier in the transportation of property by commercial motor vehicles on the public highways, he could potentially be a danger to himself and to others. . . .  [W]e will not allow Pearson to expose the public, who share the highways and transact business with authorized motor carriers, to the imminent 
threat of serious physical injury or death, as demonstrated by Pearson’s misconduct in this instance.  Therefore, the Department concludes that the immediate suspension of Pearson’s operating authority is reasonable and necessary for the protection of the public.[
]
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC has the authority to enforce Parts 350 to 399 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Pearson has violated the law.
 


Section 226.008, RSMo Supp. 2008, provides:
1.  The highways and transportation commission shall have responsibility and authority, as provided in this section and sections 104.805, 389.005, 389.610, and 621.040, RSMo, for the administration and enforcement of:

(1) Licensing, supervising and regulating motor carriers for the transportation of passengers, household goods and other property by motor vehicles within this state[.]

The MHTC contends that Pearson failed and constructively refused to allow Roth to complete the scheduled compliance review and denied the investigator access to Pearson’s required motor carrier records for lawful inspection purposes and thereby concurrently violated the requirements of the motor carrier laws contained in § 390.150.4, § 622.l90.2 § 622.210, and § 622.250.3, RSMo.  The MHTC requests that we find it has good cause to revoke Pearson’s registration pursuant to § 390.310.

Section 390.041 authorizes MoDOT:

(2) To inquire, for purposes of administration of the provisions of this chapter, into the management of the business of motor carriers, and into the management of the business of persons controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, motor carriers to the 
extent that the business of such persons is related to the management of the business of one or more motor carriers, and the division may require from such motor carriers or persons such information as the division deems necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter[.]
Section 390.150 provides:

4.  Each motor carrier of passengers or property shall keep its books and records as prescribed by the division.  These records, as well as records of affiliates, entities under common control or any other related parties, shall be subject to inspection at any time by the division or its authorized representatives.
Section 622.190 provides:

2.  The division shall at all times have access to all accounts, records and memoranda kept by railroad and street railroad corporations or other common carriers and may designate any of its officers or employees, who shall thereupon have authority under the order of the division to inspect and examine any and all accounts, records and memoranda kept by such corporations.
Section 622.210 provides:

2.  Every common carrier which engages in intrastate commerce within this state shall make available to the division within this state all accounts, records, memoranda, books and papers carried in pursuance of the requirements of law.
Section 622.250 provides:

3.  The division and each administrative law judge may examine all books, contracts, records, documents and papers of any person or corporation subject to its supervision, which are pertinent to the exercise of the division's authority pursuant to this chapter or chapters 387, 388, 389, 390 and 391, RSMo, upon notice given by any administrative law judge or employee of the division, and the person so notified shall allow access to these records by the administrative law judge and any authorized employee of the division.  After the division has given notice, if the person shall fail or refuse to allow access in accordance with this section, the division may by subpoena duces tecum compel production thereof. In lieu of requiring production of originals by subpoena duces tecum, the division or any administrative law judge may require sworn copies of any such books, records, documents, contracts and papers or parts thereof to be filed with it.


Section 622.170 provides:

The division may authorize any person employed by it to do or perform any act, matter or thing which the division is authorized by this chapter to do or perform, except that no order, rule or regulation of any person employed by the division shall be binding on any carrier or any person unless expressly authorized or approved by the division.
7 CSR 265-10.060 provides:

(1) Under sections 386.320, 387.310 and 390.150.4, RSMo, division personnel are authorized to inspect and copy all books, records, documents and papers of motor carriers and their affiliates, entities under common control, and other related parties, at any time, and are further empowered to enter in and upon and to inspect the property, equipment, buildings and offices of all motor carriers and express, freight or freightline companies.  Division personnel shall notify a person or corporation before beginning to inspect their books, records, documents, papers, property, equipment, buildings or offices.  Division personnel may give the notice of inspection orally or in writing, in advance or immediately before beginning the inspection, and shall display official identification if requested to do so by the person or corporation to be inspected.  Persons and corporations subject to inspection under section 386.320 or 390.150.4 RSMo, shall not fail or refuse to allow inspection and copying after receiving notification as provided in this section.
Section 390.310 provides:

Notwithstanding any provisions of section 390.106, to the contrary, the division at any time, for good cause, may suspend a certificate, permit or property carrier registration, and after hearing upon at least ten days' notice to the person to whom the division has issued the certificate, permit or property carrier registration authorizing any intrastate transportation of passengers or property by motor vehicle, may revoke, alter or amend any such certificate, permit or property carrier registration upon a finding that the person has failed to comply with any applicable provisions of  sections 390.250 to 390.350, or chapter 386, 387, 389 or 622, RSMo, or any safety rules, regulations or orders which may be enforced by the division.  Revocation of a certificate, permit or property carrier registration shall not become effective less than thirty days after issuance of an order of revocation by the division.


The MHTC has shown by clear and convincing evidence, undisputed by Pearson, that Roth gave the required notice to Pearson that he was going to conduct a compliance review and that Pearson not only failed to cooperate, but engaged in conduct that was so extreme in its threatening and intimidating nature as to constitute a purposeful refusal to allow the compliance review.  Pearson’s conduct thwarted MoDOT’s authority to inspect authorized by statute and violated Pearson’s duty to comply with MoDOT’s requests to inspect.  We conclude that the MHTC has cause to revoke Pearson pursuant to § 390.310.

In support of its argument that Pearson’s conduct is grounds for revocation, the MHTC characterized the conduct as criminal, contending that it constituted an assault in the third degree in violation of § 565.070.1(3).  We reach no conclusion on this proposition because Pearson’s conduct need not rise to the level of a crime to be considered grounds for revocation.  We have found the facts as Roth described them in his affidavit.  They are sufficient for us to conclude that Pearson refused to allow Roth to conduct his compliance review.   
Summary

The MHTC has cause to revoke Pearson’s property carrier registration pursuant to 
§ 390.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on February 23, 2009.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.


Commissioner

	�1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(A).


	�1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(B).


	�See 49 CFR § 385.3, which provides in part:





Reviews.  For the purposes of this part:





(2) Safety Audit means an examination of a motor carrier's operations to provide educational and technical assistance on safety and the operational requirements of the FMCSRs and applicable l-IMRs and to gather critical safety data needed to make an assessment of the carrier’s safety performance and basic safety management controls.  Safety audits do not result in safety ratings.


	�A registered property carrier is included within the term “common carrier.”  Section 390.250.1 provides:





	(4) “Registered property carrier”, a person who is entitled pursuant to subdivision (3) of this subsection to engage in the transportation by motor vehicle of property, except household goods, for hire or compensation in intrastate commerce on the public highways in this state. This term is included within the term “common carrier” as defined in section 390.020.





Statutory references are to RSMo 2000 unless otherwise noted.


		�49 CFR § 385.3 defines “compliance review” as follows:





 	(1) Compliance review means an on site examination of motor carrier operations, such as drivers’ hours of service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualification, commercial drivers license requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets the safety fitness standard.  A compliance review may be conducted in response to a request to change a safety rating, to investigate potential violations of safety regulations by motor carriers, or to investigate complaints, or other evidence of safety violations.  The compliance review may result in the initiation of an enforcement action.





	�Ex. 3 at 5.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4, RSMo Supp. 2008.        


	�Section 226.008.2(1), RSMo Supp. 2008, and §§ 390.201 and 622.550.


	�Section 622.350, RSMo Supp. 2008.
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